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PROCEEDINGS
(Kodiak, Alaska - 9/25/2013)

(On record)

O~NO U WNPE

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Good morning everyone.
9 Let"s take our seats and let"s call the meeting to
10 order.

11

12 Would you do a roll call, please, Carl,
13 make sure we have a quorum this morning.

14

15 MR. JOHNSON: Most certainly, Mr.
16 Chair. A roll call to confirm that we still have
17 quorum.

18

19 Antone Shelikoff.

20

21 MR. SHELIKOFF: Here.

22

23 MR. JOHNSON: Patrick Holmes.

24

25 MR. HOLMES: Here.

26

27 MR. JOHNSON: Richard Koso.

28

29 MR. KOSO: Here.

30

31 MR. JOHNSON: Sam Rohrer is excused

32 absence based on the Council®s vote yesterday. The
33 same for Tom Schwantes.

34

35 Pete Squartsoff.

36

37 MR. SQUARTSOFF: Here.

38

39 MR. JOHNSON: Vincent Tutiakoff.
40

41 MR. TUTIAKOFF: Here.

42

43 MR. JOHNSON: Della Trumble also
44 excused absence.

45

46 Mitch Simeonoff.

47

48 CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Here.

49

50 MR. JOHNSON: And Melissa Berns.
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MS. BERNS: Here.

MR. JOHNSON: Seven present of the
Council. You have a quorum. Mr. Chair.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Carl.
Welcome back, everyone, for the second day of the
Kodiak/Aleutians Regional Advisory Council meeting.

This morning we"re going to continue on
with our agenda items. And we have agency reports.
The first agency is OSM I think. That"s what 1 have on
my agenda.

Do we have something else, Carl? You
seemed like.....

MR. TUTIAKOFF: Continuance of the
rural determination.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes. This morning is the
Council®s opportunity deliberate and discuss on the
rural determination process.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you. Yeah.
Thanks for that correction, Carl.

We® 1l discuss the rural determination
process before we get into agency reports. This is an
opportunity for the Board to make their statements and
give their opinions, whatever. |1"1l open it up to the
Board.

Also if there"s anyone in the audience
that wished to make further testimony on rural
determination process -- | see Pam has her hand up.
Have you filled out a comment form?

DR. BUMSTED: Yes.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. 1711 just
turn it over to Carl and he can call the people that
signed up for testimony.

MR. JOHNSON: Certainly. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.

First, and 1| realize that the Council

members were here last night and had an opportunity to
see this presentation, but what we"ve been doing at
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these meetings so far this fall is following the
evening public hearing with the Board, doing the
presentation again during the day for the Regional
Advisory Council in the off chance that there are
people who are here who did not get to see this
presentation last night, and may still want to provide
input to the Council.

So with the Chair®s indulgence, 1711 go
ahead and do this presentation.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: All right. Thank you,
Mr. Chair. As you know, I"m Carl Johnson, but 1711
state it for the record, with the Office of Subsistence
Management, which is part of the Federal Subsistence
Management Program.

The Federal Subsistence Management
Program includes five Federal agencies: The Forest
Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, National Park
Service, Bureau of Land Management, and Bureau of
Indian Affairs. That program is responsible for
managing subsistence on all Federal public lands in
Alaska.

And the information that I am providing
here today could also be found on the Federal
Subsistence Management Program website,
www.doi .gov/subsistence.

Now, here®"s kind of a quick overview of
what 111 be doing, explaining to the Council this
morning, and that is to talk about the current rural
determination review process and how the public can be
a part of that review. And in order to do that, 1™m
going to highlight the actions that brought us here,
that the Board is looking for a way to improve the
rural and non-rural determinations; how they"re made,
background on the Federal rural determination process,
you know, specifically the legal framework that guides
the Board in its decisions; how we currently do rural
determination reviews of the Federal Subsistence Board;
and the criteria that are used in determining which
areas are rural or non-rural. And again all of this
information can be available on the website, and I™m
going to provide some information later on as to how
people can provide public comment and seek more
information.
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So why we"re here. In December of 2010
the Secretaries of the Interior and Agriculture
directed the Federal Subsistence Board to conduct a
review of the process that is used in making rural and
non-rural determinations to see if the methods being
used are relevant and current. The Federal Subsistence
Board is seeking recommendations from all the Regional
Advisory Councils, input from the public, and also
input from tribes and ANCSA corporations through direct
consultation.

The Federal Subsistence Board may
develop recommendations for improving the rural
determination process based on all these different
points of input. And then these recommendations will
be forwarded to the Secretaries of the Interior and
Agriculture.

A little bit about the legal framework
that guides how rural determinations are made. Title
VII1 of ANILCA is the legislation which provides a
subsistence priority for all rural Alaskan residents to
harvest fish and wildlife on Federal public lands.
Only those residents of rural communities are eligible
for a subsistence priority. And under Title VIII1 of
ANILCA that"s both Native and non-Native residents of
rural areas. They will have a subsistence priority on
Federal public lands, which you can see in the green
areas of this map.

And can you see this okay? Is this too
bright, the light and everything? Okay.

Now, when Congress passed the Alaska
National Interest Lands Conservation Act, there was a
Senate report, Senate Report No. 96-413, which provides
some additional comments on Title VIII. And it
provided specific examples of areas that are excluded
from rural status. So they were immediately deemed
non-rural. These are Ketchikan, Juneau, Anchorage and
Fairbanks. But that same report also provided examples
of communities that are rural. So they specifically
named Dillingham, Bethel, Nome, Kotzebue, Barrow, and,
quote, other Native and non-Native villages scattered
throughout the state, end quote.

But In addition to statutes, the
Federal Subsistence Board is also bound by certain
Federal case decisions. In this case there is one
decision from the Ninth Circuit Federal Court of
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Appeals which doesn"t provide a specific definition of
rural, but gives further understanding of what will be
accepted as a definition of rural.

The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals
determined that rural refers to a sparsely populated
area. That is the primary indicator of what is rural.
However, rural does not mean it"s primarily about the
subsistence lifestyle or an area"s use of fish and
wildlife resources. The court noted that Congress,
quote, did not limit the benefits of the statute, of
ANILCA, to residents of areas dominated by a
subsistence economy. Instead, it wrote broadly, giving
that rural statutory priority to all subsistence users
residing in rural areas, end quote.

Now, here is a look at the areas that
are -- the black areas are the areas that are currently
deemed non-rural, so you get an idea of how much of the
state is still considered rural under the current
definitions.

And here are just some population area
numbers based on the 2000 census. And based on the
feedback last night, I"m going to inquire and see if we
can have the 2010 census numbers, but sometimes it
takes a while for those numbers to be processed in a
way where we can have them in this format, but I will
inquire into that.

So currently there are five criteria
that the Federal Subsistence Board considers when
making rural determinations. The first of the criteria
is called grouping or aggregation of communities. The
Board recognizes that communities and areas of Alaska
are connected in many diverse ways. Regulations
require communities that are economically, socially,
and communally integrated to be considered in the
aggregate, or grouped together in determining
population for rural and non-rural status.

The grouping criteria used by the Board
currently includes these three points: First, do 30
percent or more working people commute from one
community to another? Second, do they share a common
high school attendance area? And then, third, are the
communities in proximity and road accessible to one
another?

Now, with each of these five criteria,
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the Board is asking the public to provide some answers
to some questions. First, are these grouping or
aggregation criteria useful in determining rural and
non-rural status? And if they"re not, the Board is
asking for your input on ideas on how to better
indicate community integration, you know, if there"s a
better way to group or aggregate communities together,
different criteria than what are currently being used
by the Board. So that was the first criteria.

The second criteria is now once
communities have been aggregated or grouped together,
we need to look at what the population, total
population is for that community. The Federal
Subsistence Board currently uses several guidelines to
determine whether areas are rural, and one of those
guidelines sets population thresholds after the
aggregation. A community or area with a population
below 2,500 people is presumed rural. That means we"re
going to make the assumption that it is a rural area.
The next category is communities between 2,500 and
7,000. There®s not going to be any presumption one way
or the other. They"re not going to be presumed rural
and they"re not going to be presumed non-rural, which
is different from the third category, which is
populations of 7,000 people or more will be presumed
non-rural .

But again with each of these different
three population threshold levels there are
presumptions. And those presumptions can be rebutted
or changed by certain characteristics about those
areas, and we"ll get into that next. But consistent
with the aggregation or grouping criteria, the Board
wants to know, iFf these population threshold guidelines
are useful for determining whether or not a specific
area of Alaska is rural. |If they are not, they are
asking that you and the public provide population sizes
to distinguish between rural and non-rural areas, and
the reasons for the population size you believe more
accurately reflects rural and non-rural areas.

So rather than just pull a number out,
the Board is looking for any justification or guidance
as to why that number is significant in distinguishing
between a rural and non-rural area.

So as | mentioned, the presumptions can

be changed by certain rural characteristics. And these
are the current rural characteristics that the Board
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examines. The Board recognized that population alone
is not the only indicator of rural or non-rural status.
Other characteristics the Board considers includes, but
are not limited to, the use of fish and wildlife, the
development and diversity of the economy, the community
infrastructure, transportation, and the types of
educational institutions that are available in the
community.

Again the Board seeks your guidance.
Are these characteristics useful for determining
whether a specific area of Alaska is rural, and, if
not, please provide some suggestions. What other
characteristics should the Board consider that better
define rural and non-rural areas?

And the final two criteria that the

Board considers are timelines and information sources.
The Board performs its review based on a 10-year census
cycle and uses census information for a snapshot of
communities. Current regulations state that population
data from the most recent census conducted by the U.S.
Census Bureau as updated by the Alaska Department of
Labor shall be used in the rural determination process.

And since we do this every 10 years
based on the Census Bureau, then there"s also a link
between our timeline and our information sources.

We"re doing it based on the census, so it"s done every
10 years. The information collected from the census is
used in coming up with a population statistics for
determining rural status, but some of that information
is going to vary. It"s been suggested at other
meetings that, you know, maybe sometimes a census isn"t
entirely reliable if it"s in communities where people
are out a lot. They"re mobile and they"re out doing
subsistence activities. They may not always be
consistently around their home when the census is
conducted.

And some of the information the Board
has used in the past to conduct rural determinations is
no longer even collected by the Census Bureau.

So the Board asks, should the Board
review rural determinations on a 10-year cycle? If so,
why? And if not, why not? And then secondly, do you
have any other additional sources of information that
you think the Federal Subsistence Board should consider
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in counting population numbers.

And these are just the five criteria
that the Board currently uses. That doesn™"t mean that
there aren”"t other ways that the Board would consider
information in making rural determinations. Do you
have any additional comments on how to make the rural
determination process more effective.

Now, this is a lot of information to
throw out in a short period of time. We have a variety
of briefings and papers and also this presentation
available on the Federal Subsistence Management Program
website. |If you jut go to the home page of
www.doi .gov/subsistence, you"ll find several links that
can guide you to the rural determination page. You can
also email us, subsistence@fws.gov, to inquire.

And you can also call our toll-free
number here on the screen, 800-478-1456. I will
volunteer myself as somebody you can call and ask
questions about the rural determination review process.
Another good person would be Jack Lorrigan, the Native
liaison for the Office of Subsistence Management. He"s
been spearheading a lot of our rural determination
outreach and efforts.

Now, most significantly, you have
ideas, | am sure, on how to conduct a rural review
status. Now, the important thing is to get those ideas
to the Board, and for the public to get those ideas to
the Board. There are essentially four different ways
that people can submit their comments. One is by
testimony here at this Council meeting, or at the rural
determination hearing we had last night. That"s going
to be going on throughout the rest of this fall meeting
cycle. There®s a handout on the back table there, and
it"s also in your brown folders, that sets forth the
schedule for the rest of the public meetings. That"s
for both the Regional Advisory Councils and the rural
hearings. People can submit email comments, so again
subsistence@fws.gov. There"s also now a link on the
home page for the Federal Subsistence Management
Program that people can click that also then takes them
to a place where they can submit comments. And then
U.S. mail is another way, or hand-delivery to the
Regional 7 Fish and Wildlife Service headquarters in
Anchorage, and there®s the address on the slide. This
address and this whole slide presentation is also on
the handouts back on the table. And there®s a set of
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the notes in your meeting books.

And again I would like to thank the
Council for its time and also for providing the public
an opportunity to provide input on the rural
determination review. And iIf the Council has any
questions about the presentation, 1°d be happy to
answer them at this time.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Go ahead, Ray.

MR. KOSO: Yeah, Carl. 1"ve got a
question. Where do we stand on this as a RAC Board?
What"s the procedure that would go through the
determination? |1 know we are sitting here. Are you
requesting us to maybe put in a recommendation or
something? That"s about all in my mind that we"re able
to do to pass this on would be to either put it into
motion form that we either oppose or accept or whatever
with what the people of Kodiak would like to do on
this. So as far as where we stand right now, what are
we looking to do here at least at this meeting, or is
this just informational?

MR. JOHNSON: It"s definitely not just
informational. The Board is looking for the Council®s
specific input. And it could be on just one of these
five criteria, it could be on all five of them.

You know, 1 took a lot of notes last
night during the hearing from what the public had to
say, and they all broke down into all five of the
different categories of information.

So there hasn®"t ben a requirement thus
far of the Board that the Council do a formal motion
and adopt specific points. You know, what we can do is
have the Council just have a discussion, each Council
member providing its input on what the Council members
think are important for the Board to consider in the
rural determination review. And then 1 can read back
into the record what 1 take notes on as to what are
kind of the highlights of what the Council has remarked
on, and then the Council could request that those
formally be presented to the Board as suggestions or
recommendations on the rural determination review.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Carl.

Yeah, 1 would think that this Council
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would formulate a recommendation to the Federal
Subsistence Board based on the testimony that was
presented last night, and the testimony that we"ll
probably hear today. And once we get all that
information, then we can work with you, because you
probably have the records and the testimonies and we
can review those testimonies and formulate our
recommendation based on that, because we want -- 1

(Extraneous conversation on
teleconference)

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Will you state
your name and where you"re at?

(Extraneous conversation continuous)

MR. JOHNSON: Hello. Whoever®s on the
telephone, we can hear your conversation. Would you
please mute your phone, unless you want to address the
Council. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Well, 1 was saying
that I would like to base our recommendation based on
all the testimony we heard last night and today. And
we review those testimonies, any Board member that
wasn®"t here last night would have the opportunity to do
that right now after hearing more testimony today, this
morning.

So unless the Council has other
comments or questions, | guess we can continue with the
testimony.

Peter.

MR. SQUARTSOFF: Yeah, Mr. Chair. 1°d
like to see that testimony broken down, too, and put
into, you know, different sections from the testimony
last night. And as an advisory board we have always
fully supported Kodiak staying rural.

MR. JOHNSON: Well, Mr. Chair, if the
Councill would like, 1 actually typed up a summary based
on the Five categories during the hearing last night.
IT you would like to see that, I could just put it up
on the screen.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: That would be
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great.
MR. HOLMES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Go ahead, Pat.

MR. HOLMES: 1 can"t see the screen for
diddly. It would be handy if we could -- maybe if you
could ask the front desk to copy that. And 1 would
suggest that the talking point bullets that the round
table had up here, I had hoped there was some more
left, but they"re all gone, if we could get some copies
of those, because those were all different things that
everybody kept going over, and then that would give us,
you know, some paper for those that only absorb
information from what they can hold in their hands,
like me. And then young puppies like Pete can -- you
know, I mean, he can absorb it from any kind of media.
But I think those two items on paper would be helpful s
well as your verbalization.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

MR. JOHNSON: Yeah, 1 can go either
way, Mr. Chair. And I think 1 could just print out
some for the Council right over here, and then we can
-— 1 can be doing that while the Council starts to
receive testimony.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. We can
start to review. And I think there are people in the
audience that want to make further comments and
testimony.

MR. JOHNSON: Yeah, 1 have several
testimony slips, so I"1l just move back over there and
start providing some names to the Chair.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. Thank you,
Carl.

Okay. Before we start then 1°d like to
remind the people in the audience if they"d like to

make testimony there®s some papers in the back you can
fill out and get them up here, and we"ll call them out
as they appear.

The first one we have is Pamela
Bumsted.
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DR. BUMSTED: Good morning. My name is
Pamela Busted, and 1 work for Sun“aq tribe of Kodiak as
the tribal scientist. And I'm here to present some of
the studies that we"ve done on this issue, and I"m not
testifying for the tribe itself. We will have written
comments submitted before the deadline.

And 1 do want to thank you for looking
into this. |1 know it"s been a very difficult process
since 1982 | believe, and certainly since 1990 when the
Federal take over was. And it has been a major
question as to what should be done, how do we recognize
people are eligible to use their local resources.

A lot of the existing criteria which
you"ve seen on the screen, and which has been in the
record before actually has come from the State. And
you"ve heard the 2500 population figure. That"s from
the 1910 census. And the U.S. Census still uses that
as a minimum, but they do not define non-rural areas by
that. According to the U.S. Census, using geography
and not subjective criteria of what do rural people do
is -- there are only two urbanized areas in Alaska.,
and that"s Fairbanks and Anchorage. And they do
recognize, and this is something 1 would recommend, is
that you consider a geographic definition of rural.
This has had a lot of study. It just went out for a
review to the public. The Health and Human Services,
which does a lot of our frontier medicine, such as the
health clinics, the hospitals for most of the state,
use this criteria, as well as the Department of
Agriculture.

And basically it"s —-- if you think of
it, you"re flying on an airplane, and you can look down
and you can see lots and lots of water, lots and lots
of snow and ice. And then if you®"re leaving from
Anchorage, you can see how the lights and other things
are clustered. As you go away from there, they get
thinner and thinner until you"re back to mountains,
trees, snow and ice and water.

And so iIt"s something -- it"s a
reliable classification. It"s backed up with some good
study. It"s one that isn"t subjective. And it"s one
that would be really easy to implement, because
somebody else has the specialists that have been
looking at this for a long time. And they®re in
tables. You can go now to Health and Human Services
and go to a website and type in the -- and click on a
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button with the question of am I eligible for rural
grants, frontier grants. And it will name your city.
You can do the same from the Agriculture page or the
census page, is to find out am 1 rural.

And keep in mind that especially in the
west and more particularly in Alaska, rural has a lot
of variability. And the two most important
classifications beyond rural, that is the rural of the
rural, are things called remote and frontier. And
within that is a classification of island. And they
don"t count islands as people connected by a 100-foot
bridge. Islands are surrounded by water, and in our
case they"re at least 100 and -- well, we"re 400 miles
from the main -- from the nearest urbanized area. So
it"s well over an hour to travel no matter how you do
it.

So those have distinct qualities that
are standard and people recognize. And also the
frontier aspects, that you have lots and lots of space,
you have very few people living in a tight area. Even
Kodiak, the city, is remote.

I think those are going to be easier to
use instead of most of the criteria which are currently
being used.

And 1 wanted to give you another -- oh,
the other advantage of using something like remote,
these are the geographic -- they"re land use patterns,
which fits in with the land management and what the
Feds have to deal with on the ANILCA lands.

Subsistence is not a priority in ANILCA. It"s a
priority for consumption of resources. So having a
land use category or classification would I think fit
in much better and make them more comfortable using it,
because it"s something similar to what they“re familiar
with.

I did just trying to get my own back --
an understanding of the history of ANILCA, I mean, I™m
more used to subsistence as a user, and I spent eight
years in Bethel, and then worked north of the Alaska
Range in rural Alaska. So I"m coming from the bottom
up, so I needed to go back in and read all that old
stuff. And it was quite interesting. 1 went to Title
Vi1l and looked there, and the word census doesn"t
occur. Decade is in Title VIIlI. Urban doesn™t occur.
Ten doesn"t occur. Non-rural isn"t there.
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Determination is not there. And neither is community
or communities. Individual occurs twice. Residents or
resident occurs 28 times.

And 1 think it"s important to note that
the purpose of Title VIII in ANILCA and the Katie John
decision are for the Federal government to support
rural residents. And 1 think that"s key. It was key
when the Secretaries issued this review. The entire
process. And earlier it was to get actual rural
residents and users on the Board. And now we"re
looking at this final component.

And in all cases, the emphasis has been
to provide the opportunity for rural residents engaged
in a subsistence way of life to do so. And rural
residents who have personal knowledge of local
conditions and requirements. It"s not required that
people actually use these resources. It is required
that they have access to them. And what that means is
if you"re limiting rural residents from access to their
food, they should not have to eat so many calories, or
S0 many percentage, or whatever kinds of food that
somebody else decides. They have the right to access
those lands and waters. And that"s what I think we"re
dealing with. And that should be emphasized. It
doesn®t have to do with how much food or what kind.

As far as things such as determination,
as | mentioned, it"s not in ANILCA. It is in the regs,
but the regs, of course, were developed basically
carried over from the State in many cases. 1 would
suggest that you just strike any determination, that
the Board 1 think should review if an area or community
in Alaska is now urban. And review is very much
different from determine. And you heard last night
about what happened in 2006 when the issue of
determination had arisen. And essentially actually it
was the Board at that point had determined that Kodiak
was non-rural, and it then went out for public comment,
which is part of this improved process the Secretaries
wish to have now is that you involve the communities.
And today this is -- I mean, this is a result of that
emphasis.

I would suggest also that you have the
Board look at the geographic definitions of rural, much
more consistent, and it"s fairly easy to look up that
data every 10 years for review using the census. And
again it"s the U.S. Census is very concrete on how they
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define urban or urbanized areas.

IT there"s been a change of more than
25 percent, then that could be something the Board
could look further into. And to give you an idea, in
19 -- there has been only an increase in Kodiak City
population of four percent since 1990 compared to the
state increase in population of 29 percent. So there"s
been no change basically since 1990, which is when the
Federal Subsistence Board came into effect.

And 1 guess those are my major
concerns, and as I mentioned, these are things that
will be able to provide you, and I can do that fairly
quickly, of providing at least a set of considerations.

I think it"s very important to keep
this in mind, and then also to keep in what is the
purpose of the Board and what is the purpose of Title
VIIlI. And it seems to me it would just make it much
easier than all of the -- what"s in the regulation now,
and you could come down to almost two sentences instead
of the ones that we have here.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Pam.
Pat, you have a question.

MR. HOLMES: Dr. Bumsted, I wonder if
you could give the Council some guidance. You
mentioned rural, frontier and island. And which of
those is considered to be the most rural or the removed
from urban areas?

DR. BUMSTED: You could say all rural
as the census defines -- or the census only defines
urbanized areas. Within that, you have rural areas.
However, they have recognized in the past, this is
U.S.D.A., has recognized in the past that there"s a
whole spectrum of rural. And this is not to use a
dictionary definition, and not to use the Encyclopedia
Britannica which is what they used in 1990. But you
have a whole range of how people settle, especially in
the west and especially in Alaska. So within rural,
you have people who are remote. And these are people
are more than an hour from an urbanized area. And
islands by definition are more than an hour from an
urbanized area. These are people who have, you know,
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maybe -- well, where 1 lived for so long, we had half a
person per square mile. Rural is talking about
hundreds or 1,000 people per square mile, but within
that is this very far remote area. And islands are a
special subset of remote.

Now, these have just been reviewed.
They were submitted for review, comments closed in
January, and I haven"t seen the final rules. But they
do lay out some of the specifics, and if you wish | can
provide some of those.

There®s also a review of this that has
come up with, you know, the fact -- they looked into
this using geography, because so many programs have
their own policies and their own definitions. And it
just —-- what they"re looking for is something that
would be independent of specific program biases. So
you don"t want to have the military saying, well, you
know, if you don"t have a PX, that makes you rural.
You want something that"s consistent across -- that
most people can repeat. 1 mean, they can follow along
with the criteria, and come to the same conclusions.

MR. HOLMES: 1 guess what 1 was fishing
for, and 1 think you answered this | mean, was what
phrase or terminology if we were to ask the Federal
Board to look at the U.S.D.A. definitions, and 1™m
assuming that if we said, you know, look at geography
and consider their definition of an island, that that
would perhaps solidify the thing the best for Kodiak
for, you know, what we"re trying to achieve. Is that a
fair statement?

DR. BUMSTED: I think it would be
stronger if you mention having a geographic taxonomy,
and that it should be -- there are characteristics like
I mentioned, you know, should be replicable. And the
suggested on is frontier and remote. And that"s what
it"s called. I1t"s called FAR. 1It"s been used by the
Health and Human Services for at least 15 years, and it
has just completed its public review in January. So
it"s call frontier and remote, geographic taxonomies.

MR. HOLMES: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. Any other
questions for Pam.

(No comments)
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CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Pam.

The next person we have is Brenda
Schwantes.

MS. SCHWANTES: Good morning. It was a
long night, wasn®t it. 1°m not going to just repeat
the same information that I shared last night, but 1 am
going to try and -- first of all, Carl -- I know, I cut
myself off there.

I liked the summation that he put
together. It kind of hits all those bullet points.
It"s going to be really important in coming up with a
position as a RAC, as a group.

And 1 also would like to again
emphasize, as Pam did, and here®s my statement to the
RAC, you can put it in your records, but I think it"s
not just Kodiak. 1It"s all of the islands in Alaska.
And i1f you do the research and look at the islands and
the geography of the islands and the remoteness of all
of those islands, there*s really only one -- well,
right now the issue with Ketchikan and Gravina and the
aggregation there, and Juneau, those would be the two
that might be a question, iIf you were to approach your
position as a geographical consideration, because they
are part of an archipelago and they"re islands. So
there might be a question, you might need to have a
loophole in your strategy position for the Feds to
redefine or have an exception to your strategy.

But it sounds -- overall the population
issue, I"m just going to encourage the RAC to come up
with a strong position, and that is to do away with the
population issue, or at least have two tiers of
qualifications for being remote. 1 think the RAC
should challenge the rural word in the court cases in
your position statement and ask that it be looked at,
because rural in the court decisions could also mean
remote. There"s lots of interpretations for that. We
can interpret it our own way, because Alaska is a
noncontiguous state. People don®"t ship here. It takes
forever to get here. It takes a day and a half to get
to D.C. You heard it all last night.

I guess I"m just going to encourage the
RAC to take a strong position on requesting that the
population criteria be not a primary consideration, and
that the geographical component, and the rural
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characteristics of the islands and archipelagoes could
be a primary consideration in determining remoteness.

and then after that maybe a population level for some

of the urbanized areas.

So iIt"s going to be important to
develop a really strong approach to present to the
Federal Subsistence Board, and for the RAC to
understand the opinion and that approach and be able to
Justify it. And hopefully with other comments that
some of the public -- that the public presented last
night, that will kind of help your in your formation of
your position to the Council.

And 1711 just go ahead and submit this
as | did last night, although it"s addressed to you.
Basically it says population should not be a major
factor, blah-blah-blah, and that the islands and
archipelago communities should be exempt, because of
their geographical considerations.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Brenda.
Questions.

(No comments)

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. Next we
have lver Malutin.

MR. MALUTIN: You guys are too serious.
1"ve got to make you laugh, and 1°"m going to.

And we"re all here for only one reason.
Excuse me? Got it. When you get to be 82, you"ll
forget.

(Laughter)

MR. MALUTIN: Anyway, 1"m going to
quote what Harvey Samuelsen said. And Harvey was
really a really renowned leader from Dillingham. And
when 1 was talking to one day, he said, lver, and these
are his words, God damn it, we"ve been living here for
thousands of years, thousands of years, and we owned
all the land and all the resources. Today we"re
fighting like hell to get a little piece back.

And if you think about what that lady
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from Sun"aq said yesterday, or wherever she was from, 1
was thinking about Harvey; that"s why 1 wrote this
down. And that"s why we"re here. And we are really,
really on the right track this year, and I really
applaud all of you, and I"m glad you"re here. It takes
a lot of time and effort for you guys to be here.

But before 1 go any further, 1°m going
to tell you who I am, and 1 never it, because my mom
says it"s not good to talk about 1, but here I think
1°d better. This is all my research by University of
Alaska. My family came with Baranof in 1794 to Kodiak,
and 1"m still here, so this is my town. And also it
said on the Laktonin (ph) side, Laktonin is the first
Kanainaq (ph) or CEO for the Russian American Company
off the Komandorski Islands at Kamchatka when they
started the Russian American Company sea otter hunting.
They hired 18 people, they fired them, they couldn®t
get the sea otter. And according to Dr. Linda Breck on
her information that she sent me, 1"ve got it all at
home in letters, the Natives put kayaks all around the
sea otter. And all they did was hit the water with
their paddle, and the sea otter would dive, they*d come
up- They"d keep doing that. Pretty soon the sea otter
couldn™t dive any more, and all the Natives had to do
was club them. They never used one shell to harvest
the sea otter, according to the University of Alaska
Fairbanks.

So anyway that was my great grandpa,
Jacob Laktonin. So that"s who 1 am.

So now, and 1 was on the port and
harbor board for 25 years for the City of Kodiak. 1
was the chairman for 20 years. And on the Commission
on Aging for eight years. On the Prince William Sound
Council for seven years. On the advisory board to the
ANMC hospital, so on.

And I really, really thank every single
one of you for all the time that you"re putting into
this, because it does take time. You couldn®t be here
if you didn"t do your research. And to do research
takes time. And all that time is just donated by you
guys; you"re not getting paid. But you are getting
paid by us by thanking you, and we really appreciate
every single one of you here.

Okay. Now, we"re talking about making
a place, a physical place urban or rural. Does that
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physical place eat fish? 1 don"t think so. 1 think
it"s the people that live in every single area that
should be able to get their resources regardless of
where they live. They"re the ones that are really --
the ones that are depending on it, and I"m not talking
about only Native people. [I"m talking about everybody
that subsists, and I"m using your words, the
traditional way should have access to the food. And at
the expense of commercial fishing.

I feel sorry for the Fish and Game
guys. They have to make an estimate, high and low
range, every single year,
based on what they predict. And look at the Kuskokwim
this year. Now those guys have got to really, really
struggle to try to make ends meet up there. Imagine
taking the food away from the people, because of the
dollar and the commercial fisherman. That"s what it"s
all about.

But think about making an area urban or
rural only has to affect the people before that made
these laws that didn®"t know what they were talking
about. And a lot of the information that we have today
from our advisory board doesn"t fit, and some of them
didn®"t know what they were talking about.

How many people here have been to
Saxman? Two. Okay. That"s what I"m saying. If you
have to make a decision on Saxman, not being there, 1
was there, and I think Saxman by all means all them
people should have their food.

But anyway, that"s what"s happening
today. And 1 just wish that we could somehow -- maybe
even have a limited entry. 1 don"t care. Make people
qualify for what they"re getting, because the number of
people are going to kill us, and they"re killing us.
That"s not my suggestion, but 1 just said it, because 1
stayed awake last night thinking.

Okay. 1 talked about the Federal
grants. 1 talked about your acreage. The villages,
the towns, the cities.

You know, that"s really all 1 have to
say, but I really thank every single one of you for
being here, because hopefully we"ll be able to get our
way, and 1 just hope that they never ever take the
traditional foods away from any Native people any
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place.

Oh, yes, 1 was on the RuralCAP Halibut
Board. And we could ship halibut. Halibut is Federal,
and we could ship halibut any place in Alaska to the
people wherever they were. And we can"t do that with
migratory birds. And that®"s wrong. | think that we
should be able to ship anything that are traditional
foods was or is or are, and be able to get it to every
single person no matter where they are in Alaska. They
might be in the hospital, or whoever. There"s all
kinds of needs and they just can"t get it. So just a
suggestion.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, lver.
We have Brenda Schwantes again?

MS. SCHWANTES: No.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: No. Wwell,
somebody®s playing with the -- and we have Iver Malutin
again.

(Laughter)

MR. MALUTIN: No, not me. [I"m done.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: You"re done.

MR. MALUTIN: Did I fill two of them
out?

MR. TUTIAKOFF: Yeah.
CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay.-
MR. MALUTIN: One this morning.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: That"s all right.
We"ve got Melissa Borton next then.

MR. MALUTIN: Thank you.

MS. BORTON: I promise I won"t go

(Laughter)
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MS. BORTON: Good morning, everybody.
My name is Melissa Borton. 1°m the tribal
administrator for the Native Village of Afognak, and I
am here representing my tribe.

I appreciate the opportunity to address
you guys, and 1 think that your comments and
recommendations that you"ll be making to the Federal
Subsistence Board are highly weighted, and we certainly
appreciate the opportunity to tell you how we feel.

For those of you that were here last
night, 1 think you heard overwhelmingly how important
subsistence is to Kodiak.

I"m a lifelong resident. My husband
was born and raised here. We"re both Natives, and we
raise our children our traditional way of lifestyle,
and we subsist. We heavily subsist. It"s important to
us.

The issues that I have with the current
criteria that the Federal Subsistence Board uses is no
different than what you heard from Brenda and Pam. 1
think the population threshold is way too low. 1 don*"t
have a good suggestion, because I don"t think Kodiak
should be weighted simply because of population. Our
geographic remoteness should be the primary factor.
It"s expensive to live here, but that certainly doesn"t
keep us away. 1"m not going to move to the mainland
Just because i1t"s expensive to live here. 1 live here
because 1 love Kodiak. 1 love the community. The
sharing that we do amongst ourselves is extremely
important to me and to my family and to my friends, and
my extended family. My husband and 1 have both sets of
grandparents that live here, and they can®"t go out and
fish for themselves, so we provide for them. And it"s
important to us.

I also think that if the Federal

Subsistence Board is looking for criteria to determine
rural versus non-rural, 1 would suggest looking at the
12 State criteria. What I like about the -- I can"t
say they"re all perfect, but what 1 like about the 12
criteria is it doesn"t look only at demographics. It
does look at actual characteristics. It looks at the
extend and use of sharing. It looks at the diversity
of the resources, so it gives you a bigger picture I
guess of how to determine a community.
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And then again with the timelines, 1
don"t think 10 years is adequate. 1 think 10 years is
too short of a timeframe to put a community through
turmoil. I think once rural, you®re rural unless
there®s a significant change that tells you otherwise.

So | appreciate the opportunity, and 1
know you*ll be hearing much of the same from the people
following me.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you,
Melissa.

Does anyone have questions.
(No comments)

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: No. Okay. Then
last, but not least, we have Nancy Nelson.

MS. NELSON: Good morning. 1°m Nancy
Nelson. 1 sit on the Port Lions Tribal Council;
however, I*m here on behalf of myself. And I also work
for the Native Village of Afognak.

I listened to all the testimony last
night, and 1 agree with everything.

I am originally from Afognak and Port
Lions; however, 1 live in Kodiak because of the
economy. And many of my people from Port Lions have
moved away just for that reason. There is just -- you
need to work. But I own a home in Port Lions. 1 go
back. Many of my family does. My friends, they all
return to that village and they do their subsistence.
And if this was -- if this was to change, we would not
be allowed to do that without breaking the law.

And I listened and 1 agree with all the
testimony of what everyone says. But that part was
missing, of all the people that had to leave these
rural communities for economic reasons, and if they
can"t return, and if they do return, they can"t subsist
in their own village, I think that would be pretty
devastating to us all that had to leave. So I would
like for you to think of that when you make your
decision.
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And 1 also spends weeks outside of
Afognak, and we teach our youth our traditional way of
life and we subsist. We teach them just to take what
they need and not to over-harvest anything. And would
we not be allowed to do that?

And those are my concerns. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Nancy.
Peter.

MR. SQUARTSOFF: Yeah. Mr. Chair.
Nancy®"s part about going back to Port Lions to harvest
subsistence, Port Lions is under State regulations, and
I think what she"s referring to. This is the Federal.

But anyway 1 agree with all the
testimony so far, but that"s why 1 wanted to ask so
people can be explained what the differences between
State and Federal and where State and Federal waters
are. She might not be able to go to Litnik, but she
still can go to Port Lions, because Port Lions is under
State.

MS. NELSON: 1"d like to ask you a
question then.

REPORTER: You"ll have to come up to
the microphone, please.

MS. NELSON: Okay. But we all know
when one changes or something, the other one follows.
We have seen a pattern of that. You know, we still
could stand that risk of not being able to do that.

And that is a concern. When one thing starts changing,
it seems like there®"s a pattern amongst the government
that keeps on changing and making it harder for us to
be able to live our traditional way of life.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you for
that.

That completes the testimony papers |
have here, if there®"s anyone else that would like to
make testimony that haven"t filled out a paper, and you
have a burning desire to testify on behalf of Kodiak,
then now is your chance.

(No comments)
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CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: If not, then thank
you very much for your testimony.

Carl.

MR. JOHNSON: Mr. Chair. This might be
a good time to inquire if there is anybody on the
phoneline that wanted to offer testimony on this.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Good idea. Out of
sight, out of mind. If I don"t see them, I don"t call
them.

Antone, do you have any questions,
comments on this rural determination process.

MR. SHELIKOFF: No. No.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. Is there
anyone else on the phone that would like to make
testimony or have questions or comments.

(No comments)

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Okay. So if there
are no further testimonies, then the Council will
gather up all those testimonies, go over them, and
formulate hopefully a very strong recommendation to the
Federal Subsistence Board.

Vince, did you have a question?

MR. TUTIAKOFF: Yeah. No, I don"t have
a question, but as a Council I think we"re being asked
to, you know, digest all the information we had last
night and what we have been presented today. And as
Council representative for Kodiak/Aleutians, there®s a
lot of information, and 1"ve been counting people and 1
kind of lost track of how many were actually here last
night. About 80. And we had like 35 maybe testimony.

MR. JOHNSON: We had 15 people testify
last night.

MR. TUTIAKOFF: And this morning.

MR. JOHNSON: Yeah, this morning
another five.

102



O©CoO~NOOUITAWNPR

MR. TUTIAKOFF: Okay. So we had 20 out
of maybe 80 testified last night. And 1 kind of made a
list, and using your paper that you put together for
us, summary, I went real quickly through them. On the
aggregation issue, we had five. And when I say Ffive
and by numbers, I mean it was mentioned by an
individual or that many times. And under population
threshold, the arbitrary had 14. Too low for Kodiak,
14. Too much emphasis on population had 19, or right
up to every one, about everybody that spoke. Do away
with the population cap, or get a higher number 1 guess
was what was requested, was two. Should not be a
primary factor had seven. Population of 25,000 derived
from archaeology was two. The rural characteristics,
geographic remoteness, | had 12. Kodiak"s an island,
and that will never change issue, 12. Islands again,
10. Islands and different and remote, under a
different context, was 10. The bombing by -- or they
tried to bomb us, twice.

(Laughter)

MR. TUTIAKOFF: How weather impacts the
transportation to the community was five. Higher
percentage of sharing, more rural, seven. Proximity to
the resource, three. Subsistence hub, need to be in
their own category, was two. Most emphasis should be
placed on rural characteristics had seven. The high
cost of living was 10. Median income to a community
was five. Inability to commute to other areas was
seven. Look at the 12 factors was four. Outside the
progress that ends infrastructure, facilities, and all
those related to the population, the military, so
forth, three. The reason why people live here had 12.
How supplies are delivered to the community had five.
And then education, four. In other words,
infrastructure. Clinics, | had eight.

The one thing that really -- that 1
thought was missing in categorizing and part of the
issue that we should be talking about is I had
discussion, 1 was on a teleconference, 1 don"t know, a
couple weeks ago with other villages, and discussing
this issue with ANCSA corps and village corporations.
One of the issues that came up that was interesting was
utilize the population data of a tribal entity. 1I™m
here primarily for the reason that the tribe appointed
-— 1 had to go through the tribe to get here. When 1
did my application, 1 had to apply through the tribe,
not through ANCSA corporation, or Department of Fish
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and Game, or any other entity. | was asked by the
tribe to sit here. And amongst five or six others in
my community, | was selected by the Secretary of
Interior.

So i1t"s kind of interesting that none
of the discussions, although there®s representatives
from the tribes here in Kodiak, 1 think that utilizing
the tribal numbers as part of an aggregate of the
population. We"re a small -- we"re probably -- if
anybody does the research of it, utilizing the
population, the tribes as an entity within any one
community or region, would be a very small percentage.
And 1°d ask, you know, that the tribal governments®
data, information on population be inserted here in
this process.

Another issue that 1 found to be
interesting was categorizing all islands as rural.

I don"t support the issue that we have
an every 10-year review. 1 think that should be thrown
out, and I think it was put in there by a bureaucrat
who doesn®t understand the process of just living in
Alaska, and have probably never been here, although he
looked at what"s happening in the Lower 48, and says,
well, we"Il just do it every 10 years and give me a job
to do so | can retire. That needs to go away. It"s
too hard on a community. And 1 wasn®"t here on this
Council when we did the first review for Kodiak. It
was a period of time where 1 had to get off, because 1
was living in Anchorage, and 1 couldn®t be on this
Council because we I was taking a job in Anchorage, so
I had to get off at that time. But I think that that
should be thrown out. 1 don"t support it.

The other issue is on the population
numbers. They"re arbitrary in my opinion. They"re
Just taken out of some book that some bureaucrat was
reading and said, oh, use these numbers, and we"1l
throw it to Alaska and let them deal with it.

I have a hard time dealing with when
they do a population, they count transient workers,
which is a big population base that comes through every
community that"s a fishing port, and Kodiak is one of
them, Unalaska is another one. 1 have a hard time
dealing with how they distribute funds based on
population. They don"t use the local numbers that
everybody else uses. And | have a hard time dealing
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with that.

So I hope that, you know, we come up
with a good recommendation and incorporate some of
these ideas that we can get to the full Board there.

That"s all 1 have right now. Mr.
Chair.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you,
Vincent.

Any other Council members have
comments. Pat.

MR. HOLMES: Mr. Chairman. 1 guess I™'m
getting so old 1 can™t remember. 1 kind of feel like
one time I was out at King Cove and working 18 hours a
day, and stopped down and talked to Rick"s dad, and he
said, you look tired. And he said, do you want a beer?
And 1 thought, well, sure. And so somebody throws me
up a whole six-pack, and that was a beer out there, and
my brain is just as buzzed today, and 1 don"t know that
I can remember everything 1 said last night, so I hope
you do.

But I was thinking on things to add to
what 1 had last night, and 1 gave the guys my talking
points, so I don"t even have those. But some
additional items to add to what | was commenting on
last night, and on the bullets from the Rural Round
Table. We could probably grab those and plug them into
our letter, because it kind of hits a lot of -- most
all the points that the community raised.

But on using Native info, and I thought
that Vincent®s was really good, because when the Rural
Round Table was working on this last time, Freya Holmes
went to Canada (ph), and she"s a little lost Norwegian
tribe here. Anyway, she went to count, and the numbers
that she came up there for folks that were being
treated at Kodiak Area Natives Medical Clinic 1 think
was at least 5 or 10 percent. Do you remember,
Melissa? It was significantly higher than what the
census had, because the census is, you know, random
sample, and depending on where they"re sampling, it
changes and skews the information. And I think going
to, you know, the Native community is one way how to
determine that proportion of the community. And, you
know, those are the folks 1 learned from 50 years ago,
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and still learn things from.

And then 1 think on the 10-year
question, that"s a really arbitrary, bureaucratic time,
and, of course, bureaucrats are still going to want to
know, well, when should we look? And my feeling is,
well, let"s just grab a statistical phrase,
significant. And to me, a significant change in the
population would be an increase of 25 percent, whenever
that occurs. And it just isn"t going to happen here.
IT we get a cutter, there might be 300 people more.

But if we get the rats, we might lose 1,000. So, you
know, is that -- you know, 1 think that might be a way
to define significant is at least 25 percent, and just
forget the 10-year renewal.

And 1 still would concur with most of
the folks that testified that once rural, remains
rural, but the bureaucrats are going to come back and
say, well, what if. And so | think that would be a
bone to throw to them.

And 1 think, getting at Vince"s comment
on looking for transients, the community was very
sensitive -- | mean, a lot of folks last time said,
well, throw the Coast Guard out, they don"t count.

But, you know, there"s a lot of folks like Jimmy Ang, I
know a dozen warrant officers, folks that re-upped many
times, lived in town. When they retired, they came
back and stayed here, and they"re just as much of our
culture as anyone.

But I think the way to go at that --
and then the transient fishermen. And since IFQs and
stuff, we"ve got folks that are here just enough to do
their Qs, maybe fish a few reds, and they“"re gone. So
how do you adjust for that if they happen to be here in
April when the census comes.

And 1 think one place to look at, and 1
would suggest to the Federal Board that they maybe look
further for something else, is to access the Permanent
Fund database, and at least that tells you who"s been
here a year. There might be people that, you know, do
change and come and go, but that"s a lot more refined
than the Federal census, because that"s | think kind of
arbitrary. And looking at the numbers from the last
census, I still don"t know -- to me it looks like
there®s probably 3,000 more people reported here on the
road system than exist, and 1 don"t know where they
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are, how they came up with i1t, if they just called the
base and said, well, how many employees do you have,
how many people are stationed here, and that became two
or 3,000, whatever it was, but yet we all know at that
time, before they built up the housing at the base, you
know, there were probably 25 percent or 40 percent of
the families lived in town.

And so, you know, there®"s potential for
a lot of double counting, and I really think that they
need to look very seriously at who really has a
potential to be a subsistence users. And you can*"t
really use the subsistence harvest data from Fish and
Game, because folks from other parts of the State come
down here to do the State subsistence.

And then, you know, as Melissa said,
you know, they fish for her family®s grandparents, and
a lot of folks do that. When I"m fishing have a good
year, you know, 1"m Ffishing for old timers all up and
down Mission Road.

And so that"s a sticky number, but at
least going for a PFD number would be a little better
coming up with numbers. But overall | think the number
question is really irrelevant and compared to the
lifestyle, really concur with Melissa®"s comments, and
the Round Table of looking at the State criteria.

Don"t have to adopt them all, but at least get
something more that defines the community and the
community"s culture. And 1 know the regs say rural,
but, you know, there"s something else in the definition
of rural, and that"s our culture, and 1 think that
should be weighed a lot more than hard what appear to
be strong facts for bureaucrats to make decisions when
they"ve never participated in our lifestyle. And I
find that so objectionable for them to define us. And
so this is our opportunity to say, this is what we are.

And 1 certainly hope that the Federal
Board when they review our comments at our Council and
review last nights hearing, that they listen to the
people of Kodiak, because living on an island is
different than living anywhere else.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN SIMEONOFF: Thank you, Pat.
Any other Board member comments. Peter.
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MR. SQUARTSOFF: Yeah. Mr. Chair. 1I-d
just like to thank Pamela and Melissa and Brenda for
their comments. 1 think those are going to be very,
very useful for us to making our determination. And
then lver and Nancy.

I grew up living a subsistence
lifestyle myself, the same as anybody else in a remote
area, and 1 have always shared the subsistence
resource. And we did not make all these rules and
regulations. All it seems like all we"re doing is
always fighting them, which to me is totally wrong. By
us living off where we live, we chose to live there.
And the State -- I guess it would be easier iIf the
whole island was either State or Federal, where we
wouldn®"t have to be saying who gets this and who 